
 

 

 

 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
10.00 AM - TUESDAY, 24 SEPTEMBER 2024 

 
MULTI-LOCATION MEETING - COUNCIL CHAMBER, PORT TALBOT 

& MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

 
ALL MOBILE TELEPHONES TO BE SWITCHED TO SILENT FOR THE 

DURATION OF THE MEETING 
 

Webcasting/Hybrid Meetings:  
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the  

Council’s Internet Site. By participating you are consenting to be filmed 
and the possible use of those images and sound recordings for 

webcasting and/or training purposes. 
 
 PART 1 

 
1.  Chairs Announcements   

 
2.  Declarations of Interest   

 
3.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
4.  To Request Site Visit(s) from the Applications Presented   

 
 Report/s of the Head of Planning and Public Protection 

 
 Section A - Matters for Decision 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 



Planning Applications Recommended for Approval 
 
5.  Application No. P2024/0257 - Pure Gym Limited, Vale of Neath 

Retail Park (Pages 9 - 28) 
Change of use from Class A1 (retail) to Class D2 (gymnasium), at 
What (former Carpet Right/topps Tiles), Vale of Neath Retail Park, 
Neath. 
 

 Section B - Matters for Information 
 

6.  Appeals Received - 5 August to 16 September 2024   
(Pages 29 - 30) 
 

7.  Delegated Decisions - 5 August to 16 September 2024   
(Pages 31 - 46) 
 

8.  Urgent Items   
Any urgent items at the discretion of the Chairperson pursuant to 
Section 100BA(6)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended). 
 

 
K.Jones 

Chief Executive 
 

Civic Centre 
Port Talbot Monday, 16 September 2024 
 



 
 
Committee Membership:  
 
Chairperson: Councillor J.Jones 

 
Vice 
Chairperson: 
 

 
Councillor T.Bowen 
 

Members: 
 

Councillors S.Paddison, D.Keogh, R.Davies, 
H.Davies, C.James, C.Jordan, S.Thomas, 
R.Mizen, P.Rogers and A.R.Aubrey  
 

Cabinet 
UDP/LDP 
Member: 

 
Councillor W.F.Griffiths  

 
Requesting to Speak at Planning Committee 
 
The public have a right to attend the meeting and address the Committee 
in accordance with the Council’s approved procedure  which is available 
at www.npt.gov.uk/planning. 
 
If you would like to speak at Planning Committee on an application 
reported to this Committee you must: 
 

 Contact Democratic Services in writing at: Civic Centre, Port Talbot 
SA13 1PJ, preferably by email: democratic.services@npt.gov.uk.  

 Ensure your request to speak is made no later than two working 
days prior to the meeting date (by 2 pm on the preceding Friday 
based on a usual Tuesday meeting),  

 Clearly indicate the item number or application number on which 
you wish to speak and confirm whether you are supporting or 
objecting to the application. 

 Give your name and address (which will be publicly available unless 
there are particular reasons for confidentiality) 

 
Please note that only one person is able to speak for each ‘category’ 
(objector; supporter; applicant/agent; Town/Community Council for each 
application.  Full details are available in the Council’s approved procedure 
 
In addition, if an objector registers to speak, the Applicant/Agent will be 
notified by the Council. 

file:///S:/Executive%202022/Regulatory/Planning%20Committee/Planning%20Committee%20-%20Public%20Attendance%20at%20Meetings.pdf
http://www.npt.gov.uk/planning
mailto:democratic.services@npt.gov.uk
file:///S:/Executive%202022/Regulatory/Planning%20Committee/Planning%20Committee%20-%20Public%20Attendance%20at%20Meetings.pdf


 
Should you wish to discuss any aspect of public speaking, please contact 
the Democratic Services Team on 01639 763713. 

Commenting on planning applications which are to be reported to 
Committee 

Should you wish to submit representations on an application presented to 
this Planning Committee, please note that these must be received by the 
Planning department no later than 2.00p.m. on the Friday before 
Committee (based on the usual Tuesday meeting).  If the meeting is not 
on a Tuesday, these should be received no later than 2.00pm on the 
penultimate working day immediately preceding the Planning Committee.  

Please note that representations received in accordance with the 
Council’s protocol are summarised and, where necessary, commented 
upon in the form of an Amendment Sheet, which is circulated to Members 
of the Planning Committee by email on the evening before Committee, 
and re-distributed prior to the commencement of the meeting. 

 
 
 



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

(MULTI-LOCATION MEETING - COUNCIL CHAMBER, PORT TALBOT 
& MICROSOFT TEAMS) 

 
Members Present:  13 August 2024 
 
 
Chairperson: Councillor T.Bowen 

 
Vice Chairperson: Councillor  J.Henton 

 
Councillors: S.Paddison, R.Davies, H.Davies, C.James, 

C.Jordan, S.Thomas, P.Rogers and A.R.Aubrey 
 

UDP/LDP Member: Councillor  W.F.Griffiths 
 

Local Member: Councillor N.Jenkins (Alltwen) 
 

Officers In 
Attendance: 
 

C.Morris, C.Davies, G.White, R.MacGregor, 
D.Thomas, J.Griffiths, C.Hall, N.Jones and 
T.Davies 

  
 

 
1. CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
The Chair welcomed all to the meeting. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 July 2024, be approved 
as an accurate record. 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

130824 

4. TO REQUEST SITE VISIT(S) FROM THE APPLICATIONS 
PRESENTED  
 
There were no requests for site visits. 
 
 

5. APPLICATION NO. P2023/0101 - MCDONALDS RESTAURANTS 
LTD, ALLTWEN  
 
This application had been subject to a site visit on 5 August 2024, 
and was attended by those Members of the Planning Committee who 
were able to. 
 
Planning Officers gave a presentation of Application No. P2023/0101 
– McDonalds Restaurants Ltd, Erection of a freestanding drive-
thru/restaurant, car parking, landscaping and associated works, 
including Customer Order Displays (COD) and play frame, at Tesco 
Car Park, Gwyn's Pl, Alltwen, Pontardawe, SA8 3AZ. 
 
The Local Ward Member had requested that the application be 
determined by the Planning Committee, and was present to give her 
representations at the meeting.  
 
The Local Ward Member for Gwaun-Cae-Gurwen and Lower 
Brynaman gave her representations as an objector. 
 
In accordance with the Councils approved public speaking protocol, 
the applicant’s representative exercised their right to reply, and 
addressed the Planning Committee. 
 
The Committee voted to include an extra condition, which is reflected 
in the decision below: 
 
RESOLVED: That in accordance with Officers’ 

recommendations, Application No. 
P2023/0101 – McDonalds Restaurants Ltd, 
Alltwen, be Approved, subject to the conditions 
detailed within the circulated report, and the 
amendment to condition 20, as follows: That 
the opening hours for the drive through be 
brought in line with the restaurant opening 
hours - that being 7am till 11pm, seven days a 
week.  

 
 

Page 6



 

130824 

6. DELEGATED DECISIONS - 15 JULY TO 05 AUGUST 2024  
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

7. URGENT ITEMS  
 
No urgent items were received. 

 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 

SECTION A – MATTERS FOR DECISION 
 
Planning Applications Recommended For Approval  

 

APPLICATION NO: P2024/0257 DATE: 26 April 2024  

PROPOSAL:  Change of use from Class A1 (retail) to Class D2 
(gymnasium) 

LOCATION: What (former Carpet Right/topps Tiles) 
Vale Of Neath Retail Park, Neath 

APPLICANT: Pure Gym Limited 

TYPE: Full Plans  

WARD: Bryncoch South 
 
BACKGROUND 

 

This application is reported to Planning Committee at the request of the local Ward 

Members. The local Ward Members consider the application should be determined 

by Members of the Planning Committee rather than by Officers’ delegated powers. 

The Ward Member’s comments are set out below in the relevant section of this 

report and relate to Noise and Traffic generation.  

 

SITE AND CONTEXT 

 

 

The application property is located on the Vale of Neath Retail Park which is a small 

retail development to the North of the town centre of Neath. It comprises two 

freestanding retail warehouse units which until recently was occupied by What! (with 

the previous occupier being Carpet right and Topps Tiles units), and by Halfords. 

The site is accessed from Cadoxton Road (A4230) via Golwg-Y-Gamlas which also 

provides access to a Lidl store to the north-east. To the south of the site is a railway 

line the A465 dual carriageway and the River Neath. Burger King and Neath College 

are located to the southwest, there are residential properties to the north side of 

Golwg-Y-Gamlas and to the opposite side of Cadoxton Road.  

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 

  

 
 

DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT 

 

This is a full application for the change of use of a retail unit (Class A1) to a fitness 

gym (PureGym Class D2) there are no external alterations proposed as part of this 

application. 

 

The building is a single storey unit measuring a length of 48.5 metres and 23 metres 

in width with two canopies to the front elevation over the two access doors. 

 

All plans / documents submitted in respect of this application can be viewed on the 

Council’s online register.   

 

 

NEGOTIATIONS 

 

In response to the initial consultation period, the Authority’s Highways Department 

raised concerns regarding the parking facilities available at the site.  The applicant 

subsequently provided a transport sustainability report.  Further details were also 

requested and submitted regarding the noise insulation from our Environmental 

Health Section.  

 

PLANNING HISTORY 

 

The application site has the following relevant planning history: - 

 

Page 10



 

  

P2007/0245 - 3 no. internally illuminated signs to front, rear and right-hand side 

elevations and 1 non-illuminated panel sign – approved 3.4.2007. 

 

P2006/1358 - New external porch, shop front entrances and display window to 

existing vacant retail unit together with ramp and handrail and internal alterations. - 

Approved14.11.2006 

 

P1998/0067 – Proposed free-standing advertising sign – Approved 12.03.98. 

P1997/1333 – Proposed temporary hoarding advertisements – Approved 24.12.97. 

P1997/0878 – Proposed advertisement signs for unit one – Approved 27.11.97. 

P1997/0857 – Proposed retail development (A1) with associated parking and 

servicing (on former Llanelec site) – Approved 06.11.97. 

 

P1995/0413 – Demolition of existing building and construction of new retail 

development (A1) & restaurant (A3), with associated car park & servicing – 

Approved  30.08.96 

 

CONSULTATIONS 

 

Head of Engineering and Transport (Highways): No objection subject to conditions 

 

Environmental Health (Noise) – No objections to conditions 

 

Blaenhondda Community Council – Concerns are raised regarding traffic circulation 

and capacity at the bottom of Penywern Hill, and a 24-hour operation in proximity to 

residential properties. 

Contaminated Land – No objections to conditions 

 

Wales Government (Transport) – No reply to date (noting that this consultation is 

required due to the proximity to the A465 only, which is unaffected by the 

development) 

 

 

REPRESENTATIONS 

 

The local Ward Members were notified on 29.4.24  
 
Ward Member comments:  
 
I am greatly concerned, I strongly feel that a 24 hour Gym is unfeasible in a 
residential area which would create high noise levels, especially as all the other 
surrounding businesses are not open 24 hours and Lidl having conditions on delivery 
lorries.  
 

Page 11



 

  

I would like to express concerns regarding 24 hour opening in a residential area. 
Also, possible noise pollution, traffic congestion on the main round about at 
Cadoxton.  As well as the lack of parking spaces which could affect other business 
located nearby. 
 
A site notice was displayed on 31.5.24. 

 

In response, to date 1 representations has been received. The issues raised are 

summarised below. 

 

 There are already 6 other gyms within 1.5 miles, the introduction of a seventh 

gym is considered to be reaching an unfortunate saturation point. 

 

 Although a sequential test has been submitted which concludes that the loss 

of this retail unit is perfectly acceptable because it is not located in the 

identified Neath Town Centre. Such a unit, however, because of its size; the 

type of products on sale; the clear need for customer parking; and the delivery 

traffic required; would not be appropriate within the Town Centre. The loss of 

such a retail unit would, nevertheless, represent an unfortunate loss to the 

shopping offer in Neath because of its close proximity to the Centre and its 

ability to accommodate the larger goods that need greater display space and 

easier access.   

 

 

REPORT 

 

The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the Council 

to take reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet its sustainable 

development (or wellbeing) objectives. This report has been prepared in 

consideration of the Council’s duty and the “sustainable development principle”, as 

set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation set out below, the Council 

has sought to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising 

the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. 

 

 

National Planning Policy: 

 

Future Wales: The National Plan 2040 is the national development framework, 

setting the direction for development in Wales to 2040. The development plan sets 

out a strategy for addressing key national priorities through the planning system, 

including sustaining and developing a vibrant economy, achieving decarbonisation 

and climate resilience, developing strong ecosystems and improving the health and 

wellbeing of our communities. 

 

The following policies are of particular relevance to the assessment of this 

application: 

Page 12



 

  

 

 

Policy 2 – Shaping Urban Growth and Regeneration – Strategic Placemaking  

Policy 3 – Supporting Urban Growth and Regeneration – Public Sector Leadership 

Policy 8 – Flooding  

Policy 9 – Resilient Ecological Networks and Green Infrastructure  

 

 

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12, February 2024)  

The primary objective of Planning Policy Wales 12 is to ensure that the planning 

system contributes towards the delivery of sustainable development and improves 

the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, as required by 

the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 

2015 and other key legislation and resultant duties such as the Socio-economic 

Duty. A well-functioning planning system is fundamental for sustainable development 

and achieving sustainable places. 

 

Planning Policy Wales 12 promotes action at all levels of the planning process which 

is conducive to maximising its contribution to the well-being of Wales and its 

communities. It encourages a wider, sustainable and problem-solving outlook which 

focuses on integrating and addressing multiple issues rather than on an approach 

which is fragmented, un-coordinated and deals with issues in isolation. It provides an 

opportunity to remove any actual or perceived problems in current approaches and 

stimulate and support innovative and creative ideas as well as high standards of 

evidence and assessment to underpin the preparation of development plans and 

strategies and individual proposals. Monitoring and learning from development 

outcomes so as to drive sustainable improvements in planning practice is also 

important. 

 

 

Planning Policy Wales 12 is supported by a series of more detailed Technical Advice 

Notes (TANs), of which the following are of relevance: - 

 

Technical Advice Note (TAN) 4: Retail and Commercial development (2016) 

Technical Advice Note (TAN) 11: Noise (1997) 

Technical Advice Note (TAN) 12: Design (2016) 

Technical Advice Note (TAN) 15: Development and Flood Risk (2004) 

 

Local Planning Policies 

 

The Local Development Plan for the area comprises the Neath Port Talbot Local 

Development Plan which was adopted in January 2016, and within which the 

following policies are of relevance: 

 

Strategic Policies 

 

Page 13



 

  

 Policy SP1  Climate Change 

 Policy SP2  Health  

 Policy SP3  Sustainable communities 

 Policy SP11  Employment Growth 

 Policy SP12  Retail 

 Policy SP15 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

 Policy SP20 Transport Network 

 Policy SP21  Built Environment and Historic Heritage 

 

Topic Based Policy 

 

 Policy SC1 Settlement limits 

 Policy EC4  Protection of Existing Employment Uses  

 Policy R3  Out of Centre Retail Proposals 

 Policy EN6 Important Biodiversity and Geodiversity Sites  

 Policy EN7  Important Natural Features 

 Policy EN8  Pollution and Land Stability  

 Policy TR2  Design and Access of New Development  

 Policy BE1  Design  

 

 

Topic Based Policies: 

 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance:  

 

The following SPG is of relevance to this application: - 

 

 Planning Obligations (October 2016) 

 Parking Standards (October 2016) 

 Pollution (October 2016) 

 Open Space & Greenspace (July 2017) 

 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy (July 2017) 

 Design (July 2017) 

 Development and the Welsh Language (July 2017) 

 Biodiversity and Geodiversity (May 2018) 

 

 

 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance:  

 

The following SPG is of relevance to this application: - 

 

Page 14



 

  

 Parking Standards (October 2016) 

 Pollution (October 2016) 

 Design (July 2017) 

 Biodiversity and Geodiversity (May 2018) 

 

 

Issues 

 

Having regard to the above, the main issues to consider in this application relate to 

the principle of development, together with the impact on the visual amenity of the 

area, the amenities of neighbouring residents, highway safety. 

 

Principle of Development 

 

The application site is located within the settlement limits defined by Policy SC1 of 

the adopted Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (LDP), the principle of 

development at this location is generally acceptable. 

 

The application site is located outside of the designated Town Centre, (located 

approximately 325 metres to the south of the application site), Local Centre, District 

Centre and Retail Allocations as defined by the LDP. Policy R3 addresses Out of 

Centre Retail proposals and Planning Policy Wales 12 requires the application of a 

sequential test when considering the location of new retail and commercial 

development. Noting however that the building is already in place and lies within an 

existing established commercial area. Therefore, the proposal is accompanied by a 

Sequential Assessment illustrating how other sites have been considered and found 

unsuitable for a leisure development.  

 

The proposed gym is intended to primarily serve residents of Neath itself and the 

main built-up area of the town and its surrounding urban areas are considered to 

comprise the primary catchment area. As such, it was considered that it is 

appropriate for the sequential assessment to be focussed on alternative sites within 

and on the edges of Neath Town Centre.  

 

The supporting information indicates that it is propose to operate a large-format gym,   

providing a floor space of approximately 964 square metres. The proposed gym will 

provide areas for cardiovascular fitness machines, functional fitness equipment 

resistance weight machines, free weight equipment, room for fitness classes and 

changing facilities.  

 

The applicant has indicated that it is considered that the floor area is required to 

provide the core components to allow the gym to operate at scale as a budget 

operator. Alternative sites should provide +/-10% of the proposed floor space 

(approximately 875 square metres and 1075 square metres), large floorplates to 

Page 15



 

  

accommodate large equipment and facilities, appropriate ceiling heights and access 

to parking. 

 

The supporting documentation has not identified any alternative sites that would 

meet the search parameters set out above including in terms of floor space and 

layout.  It is claimed that the largest available commercial properties are at Wind 

Street, forming part of the town centre redevelopment scheme between the new 

leisure centre and The Range having largest unit provides floor space of 291 sq. m 

at ground floor. This would represent only 30% of the floor space at the application 

site and would require a very significant reduction in the size of the proposed gym 

and its proposed facilities. It is also considered that as the library occupies the 

first-floor significant acoustic mitigation would be required between the proposed 

gym and such a use. 

 

The applicant is of the opinion that it would not be possible to deliver the application 

scheme at this site and it would be unsuitable for the proposed development.  

 

In terms of other sites within the town centre, it is claimed that the next largest 

available property is at Windsor Road a former 3 story public house.  The ground 

floor is now available for alternative commercial uses but provides floor space of only 

167 sq. m. As such, it would be unsuitable on the basis of size alone, being 

significantly smaller than the required floor space and the identified search 

parameters.  

 

The supporting documentation indicates that there are a relatively small number of 

other properties being actively marketed on a freehold or leasehold basis within and 

on the edges of Neath Town Centre. These are all significantly smaller than the 

application site and mainly comprise traditional commercial properties that will 

evidently be unsuitable for the proposed development.  

 

 

It is considered that assessment of sequentially preferable sites has indicated that 

there are no alternative sites that are both available and suitable for the proposed 

development. The proposal therefore accords with the relevant provisions of 

paragraphs 4.3.18 to 4.3.24 of Planning Policy Wales 12 12. 

 

The applicant has demonstrated within the above information that there are no 

available retail properties within the town centre of a size to meet their requirements 

the only alternative to this location would be an employment use unit. Members may 

also be aware that there are policies within the development plan that protect 

employment uses and as such the re-use of existing B1, B2 or B8 uses within any 

industrial uses are restricted by these policies and PPW and Future Wales. It is also 

considered that the proposed use would encourage multiple destination journeys 

thereby helping to support the adjacent retail units, and is accessible by both public 

transport, and active travel modes of transport.  

 

Page 16



 

  

As such, it is therefore considered that the principle of the use would generally 

accord with the aforementioned policies of the Local Development Plan. 

 

Impact on Visual Amenity 

 

From a visual perspective the building will not be altered externally and would thus 

not have a detrimental impact upon the character and appearance of the surrounding 

area. Any signage that may be necessary may be subject to a separate 

advertisement consent application. 

 

 

Impact on Residential Amenity 

 

Policy BE1 (4) requires that development does not have a significant adverse effect 

on the amenity of local residents. The Authority has Supplementary Planning 

Guidance (adopted July 2017) on Design which provides specific advice on how to 

consider residential amenity impacts in determining planning applications. 

 

The whole of the site including the wider area comprising Halfords through to the Lidl 

store is located at a lower level than Cadoxton Road, and the access road into the 

site drops in level as you enter the site, and branches left and right. As such all of the 

units, including the parking areas are set below the level of Cadoxton Road and the 

B4434 which runs into and out of Neath itself.  The nearest residential property 

along Cadoxton Road is approximately 53 metres away from the unit on the opposite 

side of the main road and set at a higher ground level. The nearest residential 

properties located on the opposite side of the main site access road to the retail 

park, Golwg y Gamlas, are 33 metres away from the rear of the unit and again at a 

higher ground level that the application unit. 

 

Page 17



 

  

 
 

Adjacent to the rear of the properties along Golwg y Gamlas is the existing Lidl store 

for which the opening hours are from 8 am to 10pm, and deliveries to the store from 

7 am until 11pm. The unit which is the subject of this application property was 

granted consent in 1997 although the range of goods were restricted there were no 

conditions restricting the opening hours.  The unit could therefore operate as a retail 

store without an opening hour restriction. 

 

As there are no proposed structural additions it is considered there are no 

unacceptable issues to consider regarding overlooking, overbearing, or 

overshadowing issues in relation to neighbouring residential properties. 

 

With regards to the potential impact in terms of noise and disturbance, the 

application has been supported by an Acoustic Feasibility  Report  and an 

Environmental Noise Survey Report, dated 4th April 2024. 

The report has assessed the current sound attenuation provided by the existing 

building and has suggested a number of parameters within which the proposed 

PureGym could operate to avoid an unacceptable noise impact on nearby residential 

properties.  

 

The Environmental Health Section has considered the reports and following 

negotiations it is considered that conditions which relate to the following should be 

attached which will restrict the operation of the proposed gym.  

 

 The LAeq noise level of the breakout sound does not exceed a level 5dB 

below the otherwise ambient LAeq sound level in any 1/3 octave band at the 

façade of the nearest affected noise sensitive property. 

 

Page 18



 

  

 Restriction on amplified music and speech to between the hours of 06.00 and 

22.00 hours, because these have been identified within the report as a 

significant source of noise, particularly during group classes and monitoring 

has not been conducted past 22.00 hours to demonstrate that these will not 

have an unacceptable impact on amenity.  The condition also requires that all 

doors and windows must be closed when amplified music or speech such as 

in the form of class instructions are taking place.     

 

 The studio/spin studio shall not be sited on the southeastern façade of the 

building, unless a noise impact assessment is conducted and suitable 

mitigation installed to the existing roller shutter door which has been identified 

as a significant potential weakness for sound attenuation.   

 

 The noise rating level emitted from external plant shall not be greater than the 

existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be determined at the 

nearest noise-sensitive premises or at another location that is deemed 

suitable by the Local Planning Authority. Measurements and assessments 

shall be made in accordance with “BS 4142:2014 Method for rating and 

assessing industrial and commercial sound”.  

 

 A condition requiring a noise impact assessment is conducted by the operator 

on receipt of justified complaints, a post-operation Noise Impact Assessment 

shall be undertaken, and the results submitted to the Local Planning Authority 

within one month of such request being made.  Any remedial measures shall 

be fully implemented on site within one month of written approval of the 

assessment and retained as such thereafter. 

 

 

In support of the application the agent has commented that the number of visitors to 

the gym at night is low and opening 24 hours helps to facilitate access for those who 

work shifts, for key workers and those who are more comfortable using the gym at 

quieter times. On weekdays, there would typically be an average of 10-15 visitors 

per hour between 2300 and 0600, with lower numbers at weekends. Exercise 

classes are not held at night-time so there are no issues with groups of people 

coming and going from the site during these hours. Access to the gym is by secure 

entry systems that are specifically designed to prevent tailgating and are monitored 

at all times by CCTV. Details of all members use is logged and if there are ever any 

issues with inappropriate use or anti-social behaviour then action can be taken 

swiftly, including termination of membership where this is appropriate. PureGym also 

has a dedicated in-house acoustics manager who will investigate and deal with any 

noise-related complaints.  

  

 

 

Page 19



 

  

In respect of noise or disturbance from traffic generation, the levels of use on the 

highway from activity related to the Gym use alone would not significantly increase 

disturbance over and above that already generated within the area, due to its 

location on a main transport gateway into and out of Neath town centre and close to 

a junction serving access to large residential conurbations, and links to the wider 

area.  

 

Considering the aforementioned information, it is not considered that the proposed 

use, subject to the imposition of a suite of noise specific related conditions, would 

detrimentally impact upon the amenity of the area and specifically . The proposal is 

therefore considered to accord with Policies BE1 and EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot 

Local Development Plan.  

 

Parking and Access Requirements and Impact on Highway Safety 

 

Policy TR2 identifies that proposals will only be permitted where appropriate levels of 

parking and cycling facilities are provided and that the development is accessible by 

a range of travel means, including public transport and safe cycle and pedestrian 

routes.  

 

Policy BE1 requires, amongst other things, that new development has no significant 

adverse impact on highway safety, with Policy TR2 emphasising that development 

proposals will only be permitted where all of the stated criteria are satisfied, including 

that the development does not compromise the safe, effective and efficient use of 

the highway network and does not have an adverse impact on highway safety or 

create unacceptable levels of traffic generation. 

 

The existing Vale of Neath Retail Park car park accommodates 114 parking spaces 

including 6 disabled spaces for the existing retail unit (Halfords) opposite and the 

existing retail unit (What). It should be noted however that 14 of the parking spaces 

are obstructed by bollards, reducing the maximum parking spaces to 100. 

 

The total number of parking spaces required for the proposed Pure Gym and the 

existing Halfords store is 121. 

 

The application has been supported by a parking assessment which claims that a 

reduction is justified based on the highly sustainable location of the site. The 

sustainability scoring in the Car Parking SPG is such that a reduction in parking 

provision is justified. The SPG indicates that due to the sustainability of the site that 

a reduction over 30% in the parking requirement could be justified, (i.e. 68 spaces for 

the proposed gym or 92 in combination with the Halfords unit). 

 

This results in a total of 92 spaces required for both units leaving an extra 8 spaces 

available. 

 

Page 20



 

  

The Head of Engineering and Transport has not raised any concerns with regard to 

the access to the site or traffic congestion within the area and offered no objections 

subject to the inclusion of a cycle parking provision being attached to any permission 

granted. 

 

On balance, therefore, given the availability of car parking facilities within the site, 

the existing use of the building and the sustainability assessment it is not considered 

that any shortfall in on site car parking would result in indiscriminate car parking 

within the area or have an unacceptable impact upon highway safety sufficient to 

justify a recommendation of refusal in this instance. 

 

The Head of Engineering and Transport offered no objections subject to the inclusion 

of a cycle parking provision being attached to any permission granted. To ensure 

that those wishing to access the site by active travel are encouraged.  

 

 

Biodiversity / Ecology 

 

As identified above, Policies EN6 and EN7 of the Local Development Plan will be of 

relevance insofar as there is a need to ensure any impacts on biodiversity/ natural 

features are appropriately assessed and, where applicable, mitigated.   

 

Planning Policy Wales 12 sets out that; 

 

The quality of the built environment should be enhanced by integrating green 

infrastructure into development through appropriate site selection and use of creative 

design. With careful planning and design, informed by an appropriate level of 

assessment, green infrastructure can embed the benefits of biodiversity and 

ecosystem services into new development and places, help to overcome the 

potential for conflicting objectives, and contribute to health and well-being outcomes.  

 

A green infrastructure statement should be submitted with all planning applications. 

This will be proportionate to the scale and nature of the development proposed and 

will describe how green infrastructure has been incorporated into the proposal. In the 

case of minor development this will be a short description and should not be an 

onerous requirement for applicants. The green infrastructure statement will be an 

effective way of demonstrating positive multi-functional outcomes which are 

appropriate to the site in question and must be used for demonstrating how the 

step-wise approach (Paragraph 6.4.15 of Planning Policy Wales 12) has been 

applied. 

 

In this case the development will provide a bird box which will be secured by a 

suitably worded condition.  

 

 

Contaminated Land 

Page 21



 

  

 

The application site is located on former railway sidings and as such there may be a 

potential for ground contamination. As the construction of the original building was 

carried out in the 1990’s this preceded current contaminated land regulations and 

thus it cannot be confirmed that the appropriate assessments applicable today were 

carried out at that time of construction. 

 

NPT Contaminated Land section originally requested that a contaminated land 

survey be undertaken. However, as the application is only for the change of use of 

an existing building and there are no proposed works which would involve ground 

excavations it was agreed that it would be appropriate to attached a condition for any 

unexpected contamination found on the site together with a further conditions should 

any ground excavation works be carried out then a contaminated land assessment 

and any required remedial works should be carried out. 

 

Advisory notes are also added informing the applicant that the development lies in 

an area of historic mining activity which may be a potential source of ground gas.  

 

 

Other Matters 

 

With regard to the objection raised regarding the number of existing gyms within the 

area. The commercial viability or matters of competition with this or any other gyms 

within the area is not considered to be a planning matter. 

 

The Loss of an out of town retail unit has been assessed within the report, noting 

that as an out of town retail unit these are not afforded protection by the retail 

policies within the Local Development Plan.  

 

CONCLUSION 

 

The decision to recommend planning permission has been taken in accordance with 

Section 38 of The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which requires that, 

in determining a planning application the determination must be in accordance with 

the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The 

Development Plan comprises Future Wales - the National Plan 2040 and the Neath 

Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011–2026) adopted January 2016. 

 

It is considered that the proposal represents an appropriate form of development that 

would have no unacceptable impact on visual amenity, residential amenity or 

highway and pedestrian safety.  

 

Accordingly, the proposed development complies with policies SP1 SP2, SP3, SP11, 

EC4, SP12, R3, SP15, SC1, EN6, EN7, EN8, SP20, TR2, SP20, and BE1 of the 

Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 

Page 22



 

  

It is further considered that the decision complies with Future Wales - the National 

Plan 2040, specifically Policies 2 and 3 and the Council’s well-being objectives and 

the sustainable development principle in accordance with the requirements of the 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approval, Subject to conditions. 

 

Time Limit Conditions 

1. The development shall begin no later than five years from the date of this 

decision. 

Reason: 

To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990. 

 

List of Approved Plans 

 

2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plans and documents: 

 

Transport Assessment - TN01 dated June 2024 

Acoustic Feasibility Report dated 21.4.24 

Environmental Noise Survey dated 4.4.24 

Planning Statement dated April 2024 

Green Infrastructure Statement 

Location Plan - TQRQM2410084757828 

Site PlanTQRQM24110093017974 

 

Reason: 

In the interests of clarity. 

 

Action Conditions 

3. Prior to first operation of the approved development, including external plant, 

a Noise Assessment demonstrating compliance with the noise limits imposed 

by noise conditions 4 and 13 shall be submitted to, and approved in writing 

by, the Local Planning Authority. In the event that noise limits are not 

complied with, appropriate remedial actions shall be specified and approved 

by the Local Planning Authority to ensure compliance and the remedial 

measures shall be fully implemented prior to the operation of the approved 

development, and retained as such thereafter. 

 

Page 23



 

  

Reason: 

In the interests of local amenity, and to ensure compliance with Policies 

SP16, EN8 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 

4. The noise rating level emitted from external plant shall not be greater than 

the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be determined at 

the nearest noise-sensitive premises or at another location that is deemed 

suitable by the Local Planning Authority. Measurements and assessments 

shall be made in accordance with "BS 4142:2014 Method for rating and 

assessing industrial and commercial sound". 

 

Reason: 

In the interests of local amenity, and to ensure compliance with Policies 

SP16, EN8 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

5. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, on receipt of a Noise Impact Assessment 

to design suitable mitigation, the Studio/Spin Studio shall not be located on 

the south-eastern façade of the building, to prevent noise breakout from the 

roller shutter door which has been identified as a significant potential 

weakness for sound attenuation. 

 

Reason: 

In the interests of local amenity, and to ensure compliance with Policies 

SP16, EN8 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 

6. Upon written request from the Local Planning Authority, following receipt of 

any justified complaint, a post-operation Noise Impact Assessment shall be 

undertaken and the results submitted to the Local Planning Authority within 

one month of such request being made. The methodology for the 

assessment shall be agreed prior to commencement, and shall upon 

completion identify the specifications of any remedial actions necessary. The 

remedial measures shall be fully implemented on site within one month of 

written approval of the assessment, and retained as such thereafter. 

 

Reason: 

In the interests of local amenity, and to ensure compliance with Policies 

SP16, EN8 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 

7. The unit shall not be occupied until facilities for the secure storage of cycles 

have been provided in accordance with details which shall first have been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and 

such facilities shall thereafter be retained as approved at all times. 

 

Reason: 

In the interest of highway safety and to ensure the development complies 

Page 24



 

  

with Policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 

8. Prior to the first beneficial use of the unit an artificial nesting site for birds 

shall be erected on the premises to one of the following specifications, and 

retained as such thereafter; 

 

Nest Box Specifications for House Sparrow Terrace: 

Wooden (or woodcrete) nest box with 3 sub-divisions to support 3 nesting 

pairs. To be placed under the eaves of buildings. 

Entrance holes: 32mm diameter 

Dimensions: H310 x W370 x D185mm 

or 

Swift Nest Box Specification: 

Wide box with small slit shaped entrance hole. Must be placed under or close 

to roofs, at least 5m from the ground. 

Dimensions: H150 x W340 x D150mm 

 

Reason: 

In the interest of biodiversity, and to mitigate to loss of bird nesting/foraging 

habitats under the Habitats Regulations (amended 2012) and to accord with 

Policy SP15 of the adopted Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 

9. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 

approved development that was not previously identified, work on site shall 

cease immediately and shall be reported in writing to the Local Planning 

Authority. A Desk Study, Site Investigation, Risk Assessment and where 

necessary a Remediation Strategy must be undertaken in accordance with 

the following document:- Land Contamination: A Guide for Developers 

(WLGA, WAG & EAW, July 2006). This document shall be submitted to and 

agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. Prior to occupation of the 

development, a verification report which demonstrates the effectiveness of 

the agreed remediation, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the 

Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 

and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 

waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development 

can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours 

and other off site receptors, and to ensure compliance with Policies SP16 

and EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 

10. No ground works shall take place until an assessment of the nature and 

extent of contamination affecting the application site area has been submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This assessment 

Page 25



 

  

must be carried out by or under the direction of a suitably qualified competent 

person in accordance with BS10175 (2011) 'Investigation of Potentially 

Contaminated Sites Code of Practice' and shall assess any contamination on 

the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The report of the findings 

shall include: 

 

(i) a desk top study to identify all previous uses at the site and potential 

contaminants associated with those uses and the impacts from those 

contaminants on land and controlled waters. The desk study shall establish a 

'conceptual site model' (CSM) which identifies and assesses all identified 

potential source, pathway, and receptor linkages; 

(ii) an intrusive investigation to assess the extent, scale and nature of 

contamination which may be present, if identified as required by the desk top 

study; 

(iii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 

- human health, 

- groundwater and surface waters 

- adjoining land, 

- property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 

woodland and service lines and pipes,- ecological systems, 

- archaeological sites and ancient monuments; and 

- any other receptors identified at (i) 

(iv) an appraisal of remedial options, and justification for the preferred 

remedial option(s). 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that information provided for the assessment of the risks from land 

contamination to the future users of the land, neighbouring land, controlled 

waters, property and ecological systems is sufficient to enable a proper 

assessment, and to ensure compliance with Policies SP16 and EN8 of the 

Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 

11. No ground works shall take place until a remediation scheme to bring the 

site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing any 

unacceptable risks to human health, buildings, other property and the natural 

and historic environment shall be prepared and submitted to and approved in 

writing with the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include all works 

to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives, remediation criteria and 

site management procedures. The measures proposed within the 

remediation scheme shall be implemented in accordance with an agreed 

programme of works. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 

and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 

waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development 

Page 26



 

  

can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours 

and other offsite receptors, and to ensure compliance with Policies SP16 and 

EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 

12. Prior to beneficial use of the proposed development following any ground 

works, a verification report which demonstrates the effectiveness of the 

agreed remediation works carried out in accordance with condition 11 shall 

have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 

and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 

waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development 

can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours 

and other offsite receptors and to ensure compliance with Policies SP16 and 

EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

Regulatory Conditions 

 

13. The LAeq noise level of the breakout sound shall not exceed a level 5dB 

below the otherwise ambient LAeq sound level in any 1/3 octave band at the 

façade of the nearest affected noise sensitive property. 

 

Reason: 

In the interests of local amenity, and to ensure compliance with Policies 

SP16, EN8 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 

14. The playing of amplified music and speech, above that which would be 

considered background, is restricted to the hours of 06.00 to 22.00 hours. 

Doors and windows shall remain closed at all times during the playing of 

amplified music and speech (such as class instructions). No classes should 

be undertaken between the hours of 22.00 hours and 06.00.  

 

Reason: 

In the interests of local amenity, and to ensure compliance with Policies 

SP16, EN8 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 

15. The unit shall be used for as a gymnasium and for no other purpose 

(including any other purpose in class D2 of the schedule to the Town and 

Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (or in any provision equivalent to 

that class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that order with 

or without modification). 

 

Page 27



 

  

Reason: 

In order that other changes of use can be assessed in the interests of 

amenity and to accord with Policies SC1 and TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot 

Local Development Plan. 

 
 
 

Page 28



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 

APPEALS RECEIVED 

a) Planning Appeals 
 
Appeal Ref: A2024/0008 Planning Ref: P2024/0111 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-03616-H0P0T7 
 
Appellant: Alight Media 
 

Proposal: Replacement of an existing illuminated 48-sheet 
advertisement display with an illuminated 48-
sheet digital advertisement display 

 

Site Address: 1 James St Pontardawe Swansea  SA8 4LR    
 
Start Date: 15 August 2024  
 
Appeal Method:  Fast Track 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2024/0009 Planning Ref: P2023/0914 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-03293-M6D8G5 
 
Appellant: Mr Tavis Knoyle 
 

Proposal: Certificate of lawful development (existing) for the 
use of an ancillary building as a barber shop 
ancillary to the gym (D2) 

 

Site Address: Unit 9 Gym  Quay Rd Neath SA11 1SL    
 
Start Date: 4 September 2024  
 
Appeal Method: Hearing  
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2024/0010 Planning Ref: P2024/0191 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



PINS Ref: CAS-03677-B1G1Y7 
 
Appellant: Mrs Claire Francis 
 

Proposal: Proposed first floor rear extension with flat roof 

 

Site Address: 9 Cambrian Place Port Talbot SA13 1HD     
 
Start Date: 10 September 2024  
 
Appeal Method:  Fast Track 
__________________________________________________ 
 
 
b) Enforcement Appeals 
 
 
 

Page 30



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 
 
DELEGATED APPLICATIONS  
DETERMINED BETWEEN 5 AUG 2024 AND 16 SEP 2024 
 

App No:  P2022/0509 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension 
Location: Sandy Feet Day Nursery   Dew Road  Sandfields  

SA12 7HE     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2023/0182 

Proposal: Erection of new outbuilding to house poultry, farm 
equipment, hay, and 2 no. biomass boilers with solar 
panels on the roof 

Location: Gelli Bwch Farm   Lane From B4290 To Gelli Bwch 
Farm  Jersey Marine  SA10 6JU     

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0689 

Proposal: Outline planning application for the construction of 4no 
dwellings, each with 3no bedrooms and 3no. car 
parking spaces. 

Location: Land To Rear Of   Glyncorrwg  Hall  With Frontage To 
Cavel Street  Glyncorrwg  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved subject to a 106 agreement 
Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 

 

App No:  P2023/0710 

Proposal: Change of use from library (D1 Non-residential 
institution use) to office and store (B1 use) with the 
erection of one skip/bin store within the existing 
carpark, with associated means of enclosure 
surrounding the skip/bin store, fencing, extension of 
existing stone wall, and extension to access. 

Location: 225 New Road  Skewen  Neath  SA10 6UU     
Decision: Approved 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



Ward: Coedffranc Central 
 

App No:  P2023/0767 

Proposal: Section 73 Application to vary condition 1, to allow a 
further four years for the  commencement of 
development of planning permission P2019/0017 
granted 04/03/2019. Permission is for the demolition of 
existing health centre and construction of two storey 
detached, 40 bed Nursing Home. 

Location: Former Briton Ferry Health Centre  Hunter Street  
Briton Ferry  Neath  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Briton Ferry East 

 

App No:  P2024/0040 

Proposal: Proposed widening of existing access, creating 
pedestrian footpaths and surfaced in permeable 
tarmac. 

Location: Briton Ferry Llansawel AFC  Old Road  Neath  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA11 2BS   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Briton Ferry East 

 

App No:  P2024/0053 

Proposal: Demolition of existing side extensions and construction 
of a single storey side extension to east elevation, 
single storey side extension to west elevation, works to 
existing mono-pitch roof rear extension to reduce its 
height and provide a new flat roof together with a new 
masonry wall to south boundary (Amended plans 
received 20.06.2024) 

Location: Ainon Baptist Chapel   Elias Road  Bryncoch  SA10 
7TN     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch North 

 

App No:  P2024/0163 

Page 32



Proposal: Remodelling of an existing bungalow to include a new 
roof with dormer extensions and a new first floor level, 
a two storey side extension with integral garage, single 
storey outbuilding and regularisation of rear single 
storey ground floor kitchen extension and alterations to 
front boundary wall. 

Location: Y Fron  Jersey Terrace  Depot Road To London Road 
Link  Cwmavon  Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0178 

Proposal: Listed Building Consent for various internal and 
external works in association with decommissioning of 
the bank. Internally, all existing cashier counters, 
Barclays Bank fittings and loose furniture to be 
removed from all floors. Externally, existing night safe, 
ATM, alarm box, CCTV and signage to be removed 
and exterior of building made good with apertures 
infilled with stonework to match existing and windows 
re-instated to match existing. 

Location: 9 The Parade  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 1RE     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0192 

Proposal: Installation of an electric vehicle charging hub with 
associated works 

Location: Baglan Bay Retail Park   Christchurch Road  Aberavon  
SA12 7BZ     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0209 

Proposal: Conversion of Residential Dwelling (C3) to 3 Bed HMO 
(C4) 

Location: 15 Enfield Street  Aberavon  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA12 6NN   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberavon 

Page 33



 

App No:  P2024/0216 

Proposal: Two storey side /rear extension, part first floor, part two 
storey rear extension, together with atrium extension to 
roof and retention of solar panels and associated 
mounting system to existing flat roof (amended plans 
received 09.06.24 and amend description of 
development and application forms - 27.06.24) 

Location: The Paddock   Access To Dyffryn Farm  Dyffryn  SA10 
7BQ     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Dyffryn 

 

App No:  P2024/0233 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 13 
(highway engineering scheme) and condition 26 
(visibility splay) for planning application P2023/0369 
determined 16/02/2024. 

Location: Land At Heol Crwys   Cwmafan  Port Talbot  SA12 9NT     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0236 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 3 
(construction method statement) and 5 (gigabit 
connection) of P2023/0512 granted on 6/3/24. 

Location: Plot Between 75 & 78 Leyshon Road  Gwaun Cae 
Gurwen  SA18 1EN       

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2024/0254 

Proposal: Removal of existing rear access steps for the 
construction of a part two storey rear extension 
including balcony, and first floor rear extension. 

Location: 56 Glan Yr Afon  Ystalyfera  Swansea  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA9 2HA   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cwmllynfell & Ystalyfera 

Page 34



 

App No:  P2024/0259 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 4 
(sewer diversion) of planning application P2023/0369 
determined 16/02/2024. 

Location: Land At Heol Crwys   Cwmafan  Port Talbot  SA12 9NT     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0261 

Proposal: Proposed outbuilding to be used as a garden shed. 
Location: 25 Ffordd Danygraig  Godre'r Graig  SA9 2BH       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Godre'rgraig 

 

App No:  P2024/0315 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with conditions 3 
(construction noise and vibration management plan), 4 
(construction method statement) & 5 (gigabit capable 
broadband infrastructure) of P2023/0801 granted on 
12/01/24. 

Location: 65 Main Road  Bryncoch  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 7TA   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch North 

 

App No:  P2024/0318 

Proposal: Request for a Scoping Opinion in accordance with 
Regulation 14(1) of the Environmental Impact 
Assessment (Wales) Regulations 2017 for a leisure 
holiday resort development. 

Location: Parc Pelenna  Penrhiw Angharad Uchaf Farm  Access 
To Penrhiw Angharad Uchaf  Tonna  Neath   

Decision: Scoping Opinion 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2024/0323 

Page 35



Proposal: Single storey side extension and the removal of 
existing rear conservatory to extend onto the existing 
rear elevation. Addition of a parking area to the front of 
the property and part-demolish and reconstruct an 
existing garage to be used as an outbuilding. 
(Amended plans) 

Location: 21 Crymlyn Parc  Skewen  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 6DG   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2024/0324 

Proposal: Application is to split the mineral extraction areas on 
the Morfa landfill site into two distinct areas (area A and 
area B) to facilitate construction and capping of a new 
landfill cell.  Currently the permission refers to 'lilac 
areas' on Drg. 317 Figure 1.3, which contains the area 
of a new landfill sell to the northeast of the landfill and a 
borrow pit area to the west of the landfill.  This 
application is to split the area of the new landfill and 
refer to it as area A and the borrow pit as area B. 

Location: Morfa Landfill Site   Tata Steel Uk Ltd  Port Talbot 
Works  Port Talbot  SA13 2NG   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0328 

Proposal: Demolition of existing single storey building and 
construction of single storey building and associated 
works, consisting of one classroom, kitchenette, office, 
meeting room, toilets and a store. 

Location: Sandfields Primary School   Lilian Street  Aberavon  
SA12 6AJ     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0335 

Proposal: Single storey side extension, extending raised rear 
patio area and the raising of the front driveway to 
reduce its gradient. 

Page 36



Location: 12 Broomhill  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  SA13 
2US     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2024/0338 

Proposal: Proposed conversion of attic to bedroom, installation of 
window in pine end and removal of chimney 

Location: 25 Gellifowy Road  Ynysmeudwy  Pontardawe  
Swansea  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0341 

Proposal: Installation of 12 No. antenna at a maximum height of 
18.7m along with ancillary equipment thereto including 
antennas, 0.6m dishes and equipment cabinets. 

Location: Port Talbot Telephone Exchange   Eagle Street  Port 
Talbot  SA13 1AA     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2024/0346 

Proposal: Change of use of a primary school to a community 
enterprise, arts, education and energy centre, 
community cafe, plus a new ramped access, car 
parking, pond, huts, external building (artists' studios, 
classroom and plant room) outdoor cafe seating, 
electric bike hire and landscaping.(additional plan 
illustrating vision splays) 

Location: Cwmgors Old School   Heol Y Gors  Cwmgors  SA18 
1RF     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2024/0348 

Proposal: Alteration to existing vehicular access 
Location: 118 Heol Cae Gurwen  Gwaun Cae Gurwen  

Ammanford  Neath Port Talbot  SA18 1PD   

Page 37



Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2024/0350 

Proposal:  Single storey rear extension. 
Location: 75 Longford Road  Longford  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  

SA10 7HE   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Dyffryn 

 

App No:  P2024/0368 

Proposal: Construction of a biomass boiler comprising an 
electrostatic precipitator and ash skips building, fuel 
handling building featuring a walking floor, fuel storage 
building and ancillary infrastructure including a pipe 
bridge and an external flue stack. 

Location: Intertissue (Sofidel Group) Britton Ferry Paper Mill   
Brunel Way  Baglan Energy Park   Britton Ferry, Neath  
SA11 2HZ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Briton Ferry West 

 

App No:  P2024/0372 

Proposal: Felling of 2x Sycamore Trees (Acer Pseudoplatanus) 
identified as T1 & T2 protected by individual tree 
preservation orders T359/T1 & T359/T2 

Location: The Woodlands  77A Dynevor Road  Skewen  SA10 
6TW     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc North 

 

App No:  P2024/0382 

Proposal: Partial discharge of conditions 11 (ground investigation 
report) and 16 (noise assessment) and discharge of 
conditions 13 (earthworks near canal), 14 (protective 
fencing for canal) and 15 (site-sections near canal) of 
planning permission P2023/0265 dated 22.08.23 (for 
construction of 15 no. light industrial/commercial units 
and associated works) 

Page 38



Location: Land To The North Of   Old Foundry Road,  
Pontardawe  SA8 4ET     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0386 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 3 
(CEMP), Condition 6 (Highway survey), Condition 7 
(Land Contamination) and Condition 12 (Material 
specification) of planning application P2023/0077 
determined on 11.03.2024. 

Location: Bayview   3 Fernfield  Baglan  SA12 8AL     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2024/0395 

Proposal: Variation of condition 3 of P2021/0965 granted 
09/03/2022 to allow for the gym to amend Monday - 
Friday opening time to 05:00. 

Location: Unit 9 Gym   Quay Road  Neath  SA11 1SL     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0397 

Proposal: Demolition of existing rear extension for new part two 
storey and part single storey rear extension and 
fenestration alterations to the existing dwelling. 

Location: 17 Dyffryn View  Bryncoch  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 7TU   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch North 

 

App No:  P2024/0402 

Proposal: Two storey side extension 
Location: 22 Pleasant View  Gadlys Terrace And Pleasant View 

Adjacent Road  Glyncorrwg  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 

Page 39



 

App No:  P2024/0404 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 17 
(cycle parking) of planning permission P2023/0659 
dated 21.03.2024 (replacement visitor centre) 

Location: Gnoll Estate Country Park   Fairyland  Neath  SA11 
3BS     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0405 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 12 
(cycle parking) of planning permission P2023/0676 
dated 18.04.2024 (extension and change of use to tea 
room/cafe) 

Location: Pond Cottage   Gnoll Estate Country Park  Fairyland  
Neath  SA11 3BS   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0406 

Proposal: Change of use from Dwellinghouse (C3 Use) to a 6-
bed HMO (C4 Use), rear dormer extension, installation 
of solar panels and internal renovations 

Location: 1 Maesteg Road  Cymmer  SA13 3HS       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 

 

App No:  P2024/0409 

Proposal: Installation of CCTV camera on the street lighting 
column on the corner of Swansea Road and James 
Street, Pontardawe. 

Location: Corner Of Swansea Road And James Street  
Pontardawe         

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0411 

Page 40



Proposal: Installation of a CCTV camera on 3 no. street lighting 
columns in the vicinity of Herbert Street 

Location: Herbert Street  Pontardawe         
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0412 

Proposal: Installation of CCTV camera on the street lighting 
column located near the roundabout on the A474 
Pontardawe. 

Location: Roundabout On The Corner Of A474/Ynisderw Road  
Pontardawe         

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0417 

Proposal: Change of use of land from a grass verge to garden 
area and enclosing it with a fence. 

Location: 30 Cwrt Y Carw  Coed Hirwaun  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA13 2TS   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0418 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 35 
(phasing plan) of planning application P2023/0369 
determined on 16.02.2024. 

Location: Land At Heol Crwys   Cwmafan  Port Talbot  SA12 9NT     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0422 

Proposal: Demolition of existing bungalow and construction of 1 
no. detached dwelling (outline with all matters 
reserved) 

Location: Llys Y Gwynt  17 Pen Y Graig Road  Alltwen  
Pontardawe  Swansea   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Alltwen 

Page 41



 

App No:  P2024/0427 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 3 
(Drainage) and condition 7 (Car Park Construction) of 
planning application P2023/0679 determined on 
22.12.2023. 

Location: Car Park At Waun Wen   Cwmafan  Neath Port Talbot  
SA12 9ED     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0428 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 4 
(Construction Method Statement) and Condition 5 
(CEMP) of planning application P2023/0679 
determined on 22.12.2023. 

Location: Car Park At Waun Wen   Cwmafan  Neath Port Talbot  
SA12 9ED     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0431 

Proposal: Construction of two-storey side extension and external 
alterations to existing building. 

Location: Youth Offending Team   Cramic Way  Port Talbot  
SA13 1RU     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0432 

Proposal: Proposed two-storey rear extension, the works for 
which would include the demolition of an existing 
chimney and setting back the existing rear garden 
steps to create a level patio area. Demolition of existing 
side porch and construction of replacement single 
storey side porch, re-build original side chimney, 
construct new outbuilding within rear garden for 
storage and home office, and construction of new rear 
garden boundary treatment. 

Page 42



Location: 16 Pretyman Drive  Llandarcy  SA10 6HZ       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2024/0442 

Proposal: Creation of 3 number flats on 1st, 2nd and third floors 
of property and construction of rear dormer. 

Location: 29 Station Road  Port Talbot  SA13 1NN       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2024/0443 

Proposal: A new roof on an existing extension, changing the 
existing pitched roof to a flat roof to create room for 
bifolding doors and to level the finished floor level 

Location: 3 Woodland Park  Glynneath  SA11 5AY       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2024/0444 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 4 
(noise impact assessment) relating to extension to 
western elevation of P2023/0312 granted on 15.3.24 

Location: Pontardawe Rugby Club   Ynisderw Road  Pontardawe  
SA8 4EG     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0448 

Proposal: Rear detached garage 
Location: 11 Rhanallt Street  Taibach  Port Talbot  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA13 2LT   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0453 

Page 43



Proposal: Works to tree protected under Tree Preservation Order 
T238. Tree affected: Common/European Yew Taxus 
Baccata 
Proposed Works: 1.2-2m reduction of the crown and 
branches to growth points along with dead wood 
removal. 

Location: 19 St Catherines Court  Baglan  SA12 8AJ       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2024/0456 

Proposal: Single storey side extension to commercial kiosk. 
Location: Kiosk   The Princess Margaret Way  Sandfields  SA12 

7PH     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2024/0459 

Proposal: Proposed extensions at roof space and single storey 
extension to bungalow 

Location: 12 Woodlands Terrace  Resolven  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA11 4NG   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2024/0461 

Proposal: Works to construct replacement forest road hairpin 
bend. 

Location: Forest Road,  West Of Pentreclwydau           
Decision: Prior Notification Approval Not Required 
Ward: Blaengwrach & Glynneath West 

 

App No:  P2024/0462 

Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for the proposed installation of 
two solar thermal evacuated tube panels on the roof of 
an existing outbuilding. 

Location: Llwyn Y Ffynon Farm   Lane From Heol Y Deryn To 
Llwyn-Y-Ffynon Farm  Glyncorrwg  SA13 3DB     

Decision: Issue Certificate 

Page 44



Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 
 

App No:  P2024/0463 

Proposal: Discharge of conditions 13 (EV Charging Point) and 17 
(Landscape Management) of planning permission 
P2023/0233 for residential development of up to six 
dwellings and associated works. 

Location: Harvey Crescent  Aberavon  Port Talbot  SA12 6DF     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2024/0473 

Proposal: Single storey rear infill extension and alter pitched roof 
to flat roof 

Location: 46 Wildbrook  Taibach  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  
SA13 2UN   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0475 

Proposal: Works to trees covered by Tree Preservation Order 
T042: G1 - 1x Sycamore, 1x Horse chestnut to be 
reduced by approx. 2.5m. T1- 1x Large Sycamore to be 
reduced by approx 2-2.5m 

Location: 2 The Nook   Henfaes Road  Tonna  SA11 3FH     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2024/0479 

Proposal: Single storey side extension 
Location: 10 Heol Penhydd  Bryn  SA13 2SF       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0483 

Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for a proposed single storey 
rear extension and installation of patio doors on side 
elevation of main dwelling. 

Page 45



Location: 5 Rookwood Close  Neath  SA11 3TN       
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0487 

Proposal: Non-Material Amendment application to remove 
condition 5 (sewer diversion) from planning application 
P2023/0958 determined on 23/05/2024. 

Location: 7 Ten Acre Wood  Margam  SA13 2SU       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0533 

Proposal: Request for Screening Opinion under Regulation 6 of 
the Town and Country Planning (Environment Impact 
Assessment) (Wales) Regulations 2017 for a Flood 
Alleviation Scheme. 

Location: Ynysymaerdy Road To Collins Road  Briton Ferry  
Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 2TS - SA11 2HH   

Decision: Not EIA Development 
Ward: Briton Ferry East 

 

Page 46


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Application No. P2024/0257 - Pure Gym Limited, Vale of Neath Retail Park
	6 Appeals Received - 5 August to 16 September 2024
	7 Delegated Decisions - 5 August to 16 September 2024

